Chemistry

DUMIES

Learn to:

- Grasp difficult chemistry concepts
- Supplement classroom learning with confidence
- Tackle problems you may face in your Chem II course

John T. Moore, EdD

Regents Professor of Chemistry at Stephen F. Austin University



Chemistry II For Dummies®

Table of Contents

Introduction

About This Book
Foolish Assumptions
What Not to Read
How This Book Is Organized

Part I: A Basic Review of Chemistry I
Part II: Diving Into Kinetics and Equilibrium
Part III: A Plethora of Chemistry II Concepts
Part IV: Describing Descriptive Chemistry

Part V: The Part of Tens

Icons Used in This Book
Where to Go from Here

Part I: A Basic Review of Chemistry I

<u>Chapter 1: I Passed Chem I, But What About Chem II?</u>

Grasping the Nature of Chemistry II

Recapping general Chemistry I

Looking to where you are now: General Chemistry II

Examining the Branches of Chemistry
Comparing Macroscopic versus Microscopic
Viewpoints

Chapter 2: Math for the (Chemistry) Masses

Digging Through the SI Measurement System

Figuring out what SI prefixes mean

<u>Length</u>

Mass

Volume

Temperature

Pressure

Energy

<u>Dealing With Numbers, Both Really Big or Small</u>

Using exponential and scientific notation
Using addition and subtraction
Multiplication and division
Raising a number to a power
Using a calculator

Solving the Quadratic Equation

Mastering the Unit Conversion Method

Working with Significant Figures

Understanding number basics: Exact and counted versus measured

Figuring out the number of significant figures in a measured number

Reporting the correct number of significant figures

<u>Chapter 3: Atomic Structure, the Periodic Table, and Bonding</u>

<u>Peering Inside the Atom: Subatomic Particles</u> <u>Examining the Nucleus: At the Heart of It All</u> <u>Modeling Electrons</u>

Considering the not-so Bohr(ing) model
Looking at the quantum mechanical
model

Trying to Find Those Electrons

<u>Diagramming energy levels</u> <u>Configuring electrons: Easy and space</u> <u>efficient</u>

<u>Peering at Patterns of Periodicity</u> <u>Using the Periodic Table</u>

Organizing by metals, nonmetals, and metalloids
Organizing by periods and families

Reviewing Bonding

Attracting opposites: Ionic bonding Comprehending covalent bonding basics

<u>Chapter 4: Digging Up the Mole Concept and Stoichiometry</u>

Crossing the Mighty Mole Bridge

Getting a firm grip on the mole
Going from grams to moles and back
again
Converting particles to moles and back
again
Going from grams to particles and back
again

Reacting to Reaction Stoichiometry

Calculating how many reactants and products
Percent yield: Something's missing
Limiting reactants: Running out of reactant(s)

<u>Chapter 5: Grasping Solutions and Intermolecular</u> Forces

Considering Solutes, Solvents, and Solutions

<u>Discussing dissolving</u>
A lowdown on saturated facts

Reconciling Solution Concentration Units

Percent composition

Molarity is numero uno

Defining molality

Especially for pollution: Parts per million

and parts per billion

Contemplating Colligative Properties

Vapor-pressure lowering

Boiling-point elevation

Freezing-point depression

Osmotic pressure

<u>Grasping the Types of Intermolecular Forces</u>

London (dispersion) forces

Induced dipole

Dipole-dipole

Hydrogen bonding

Ion-dipole

<u>Looking at the Properties of Liquids</u>

Heat capacity

Capillary action

Viscosity

Surface tension

<u>Chapter 6: Not Full of Hot Air: Gases and Gas Laws</u>

Reviewing the Kinetic Molecular Theory

Obeying Laws: Gases, That Is

Boyle's law
Charles's law
Gay-Lussac's law
The combined gas law
Avogadro's law
The ideal gas equation
Dalton's and Graham's laws

<u>Putting Gases Together with Reaction Stoichiometry</u>

Part II: Diving Into Kinetics and Equilibrium

<u>Chapter 7: The Lowdown on Kinetics: Tortoise or</u> the Hare?

Comprehending Reaction Rates Getting to Know Rate Laws

Slowing down the reaction Identifying orders of reaction Finding the rate constant

<u>Grasping Integrated Rate Laws</u>

First order
Second order
Zero order
Half-life (t1/2)

Tackling the Collision Theory

Exothermic reactions

Endothermic reactions

<u>Understanding Activation Energy</u> <u>Recognizing Mechanisms</u>

Getting elementary with reactions
Conforming the rate-determining step

Keeping Tabs on Catalysts

Heterogeneous catalysis Homogeneous catalysis

<u>Chapter 8: All Present in the Same State:</u> <u>Homogeneous Equilibrium</u>

Considering Chemical Equilibrium

<u>Looking at reaction (equilibrium) -</u>
<u>quotients: The Law of Mass Action</u>
<u>Transforming into an equilibrium constant</u>
<u>Kc' and Kp</u>

Working Equilibrium Problems

Making Sense of LeChatelier's Principle

Altering the concentration
Altering the temperature
Altering the pressure
Looking at the effect of a catalyst

<u>Putting It All Together: The Haber-Bosch</u> <u>Process</u> Concentration
Temperature
Pressure
Catalyst
Other considerations

<u>Chapter 9: Neutralizing Effects: Acid-Base Equilibrium</u>

Considering the Macroscopic Properties of
Acids and Bases
Looking Closely at the Microscopic Properties
of Acids and Bases

Dissolving in water: The Arrhenius theory
Accepting hydrogen: The Bronsted-Lowry
theory
Taking and giving electrons: The Lewis
acid-base theory

Examining Strong and Weak Acids and Bases

Disclosing the truth about acid strength
Uncovering the basic truth about base
strength
Strong acids
Strong bases
Weak acids

Weak bases

Acidic/basic oxides

Bronsted-Lowry acid-base reactions

Determining pH

Calculating the pH of a solution
Using the pOH to calculate the pH
Determining the antilog relationship

<u>Accepting Water's Autoionization</u> <u>Tackling More Equilibrium Problems</u>

Ka Problems
Kb Problems

Believing in Buffers

Working a basic buffer problem
Introducing the Henderson- Hasselbalch
equation
Grasping buffer capacity

Tackling Titration Curves and Indicators

<u>Chapter 10: Taking On Solubility and Complex Ion Equilibrium</u>

Solving Solubility Equilibriums

Understanding the solubility product
constant
Calculating the concentration of dissolved
ions
Calculating solubility — molar and
otherwise
Predicting precipitation
Eyeing the common-ion effect

Following the Formation of Complex Ions

Calculating the formation constant Solving them from the dissociation

Part III: A Plethora of Chemistry II Concepts

Chapter 11: Getting Hot with Thermodynamics

Determining the Change in Energy
Discussing Enthalpy
Investigating Entropy

<u>Defining entropy</u> <u>Determining spontaneity</u>

Tackling the Laws of Thermodynamics

Remaining constant: The first law
Checking for spontaneity: The second law
Zeroing in: The third law

Predicting Spontaneity for Enthalpy and Entropy Changes
Grasping Gibb's Free Energy
Checking Out Nonstandard Conditions
Revisiting the Haber-Bosch Process

<u>Chapter 12: Causing Electrons to Flow:</u> <u>Electrochemistry</u>

<u>Following Those Pesky Electrons: Redox</u> Reactions <u>Losing electrons: Oxidation</u> <u>Finding electrons: Reduction</u> <u>One's loss is the other's gain</u>

Playing the numbers: Oxidation numbers

Balancing redox equations

Going Indirect: Clarifying Cells and Cell Potentials

Looking at the Daniell cell
Writing cell notation
Getting a grip on standard reduction
potentials

Tackling the Nernst Equation

Solving a basic problem with this equation
Calculating equilibrium constants
Considering other uses for the equation

<u>Checking Out Electrolysis</u>

<u>Power on the Go: Common Electrochemical</u>

Cells

Let the light shine: Flashlight cells
Starting your engine: Automobile
batteries

Burning the Bacon! Combustion of Fuels and Foods

<u>Chapter 13: Going the Carbon Route: Organic Chemistry</u>

<u>Hustling Hydrocarbons — the Simplest</u> <u>Organic Compounds</u>

From gas grills to gasoline: Alkanes
Unsaturated hydrocarbons: Alkenes
A triple play: Alkynes and their triple bond
Benzene and other aromatic (smelly)
compounds

Following Functional Groups

Alcohols (make mine ethanol): R-OH
Bad odor carboxylic acids: R-COOH
Good odor esters: R-COOR'
Aldehydes (R-COH) and ketones (R-CO-R'): Related to alcohols
Sleepy ethers: R-O-R'
The organic bases: Amines (R-NH2) and amides (R-CO-NH2)

<u>Chapter 14: Pondering Polymers</u>

<u>Examining Natural Monomers and Polymers</u> <u>Classifying Unnatural (Synthetic) Monomers</u> <u>and Polymers</u>

Providing a little structure
Feel the heat
Used and abused
Chemical process

Reducing, Reusing, Recycling Plastics

<u>Chapter 15: Bringing Biology into the Lab:</u>
<u>Biochemistry</u>

<u>Understanding the Basic Elements Associated</u> <u>with Biochemistry</u> <u>Contemplating Carbohydrates</u>

Sticking with one sugar: Monosaccharides
Joining monosaccharides: Disaccharides
and polysaccharides

Getting the Lowdown on Amino Acids
Piecing Together Proteins

Forming the sequence: Primary structure
Bonding hydrogen: Secondary structure
Interacting with side chains: Tertiary
structure
Having more than one primary:
Quaternary structure

Looking at Lipids

<u>Influencing bodily functions: Steroids</u> <u>Storing energy: Fats</u>

Observing Nucleic Acids

Eyeing the parts of nucleic acids
Seeing what nucleic acids do
Defecting molecules leads to mutations

Part IV: Describing Descriptive Chemistry

<u>Chapter 16: Examining the Ins and Outs of</u> Petroleum

Understanding How Crude Oil Is Refined

<u>Separating chemicals: Fractional</u> distillation

Cracking up: Catalytic cracking

Moving molecular parts around: Catalytic

<u>reforming</u>

Telling the Gasoline Story

Converting gasoline into a vapor:

Volatility

<u>Determining how good gas is: Octane</u>

<u>ratings</u>

Put the lead in, get the lead out:

Additives

Eyeing Alternatives to the Internal Combustion Engine

<u>Chapter 17: Feeling the Power of Nuclear Chemistry</u>

<u>Tracing Radioactivity and Transmutation</u>

Radioactivity: An unstable nucleus decays Transmutation: Under humanity's control

Examining How Nature Does It: Natural Radioactive Decay

Identifying stability
Decaying in a natural way
Decaying in less common ways

<u>Determining Half-Lives and Radioactive</u> <u>Dating</u>

Figuring out half-lives
Introducing radioactive dating

Clarifying Nuclear Fission

<u>Dealing with critical mass and chain</u> <u>reactions</u>

<u>Powering civilization: Power plants</u> <u>Breeder reactors: Making more nuclear</u> stuff

Using the Sun's Power: Nuclear Fusion

Figuring out whether a fusion reactor is possible
Considering fusion's future

<u>Chapter 18: Chemistry in the Home</u>

Coping with Chemistry in the Laundry Room

Reducing the water tension: Surfactants
Make it soft: Water softeners

Make it whiter: Bleach

Cooking Up Chemistry in the Kitchen

<u>Clean it all: Multipurpose cleaners</u> <u>Wash those pots: Dishwashing products</u>

Checking out Chemistry in the Bathroom

Detergent for the mouth: Toothpaste
Phew! Deodorants and antiperspirants
Skin care chemistry: Keeping it soft and
pretty
Clean it, color it, curl it: Hair care
chemistry

Chemistry in the Medicine Cabinet

Not tonight, I have a headache: The aspirin story
Introduction to serendipity: Minoxidil and Viagra

Part V: The Part of Tens

<u>Chapter 19: Ten Terrific Tips for Passing Chem II</u>

<u>Developing and Sticking to a Regular</u>
<u>Study Schedule</u>
<u>Striving For Understanding — Don't Just Memorize</u>
<u>Doing the Homework</u>

Using Additional Resources
Skimming the Material before Going to
Class
Taking Good Notes
Recopying Your Lecture Notes
Asking Questions
Getting a Good Night's Sleep before
Exams
Paying Particular Attention to Charges
and Significant Figures on Exams

<u>Chapter 20: Ten Must-Know Formulas for Chem II</u>

Molarity Equation
Rate Law Equation
Homogeneous Equilibrium Constant
Expression
Acid and Base Equilibrium Constant
Expressions
pH/pOH Equations
Henderson-Hasselbalch Equation
Solubility Product Equation
Gibbs Free Energy Equation
Nernst Equation
Half-Life Equations

<u>Chapter 21: Ten Great Chemistry Careers</u>

Patent Attorney
Pharmaceutical/Chemical Sales
Forensic Chemist

Biochemistry/Biotechnology
Agricultural Chemist
Material Science
Food and Flavor Chemist
Water Quality Chemist
Cosmetic Chemists
Chemistry Teaching

Chemistry II For Dummies® John T. Moore, Ed.D

Author, Chemistry For Dummies, Second Edition



John Wiley & Sons, Inc.

Chemistry II For Dummies®

Published by John Wiley & Sons, Inc. 111 River St. Hoboken, NJ 07030-5774 www.wiley.com

Copyright © 2012 by John Wiley & Sons, Inc., Hoboken, New Jersey

Published by John Wiley & Sons, Inc., Hoboken, New Jersey

Published simultaneously in Canada

No part of this publication may be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system or transmitted in any form or by any means, electronic, mechanical, photocopying, recording, scanning or otherwise, except as permitted under Sections 107 or 108 of the 1976 United States Copyright Act, without the prior written permission of the Publisher. Requests to the Publisher for permission should be addressed to the Permissions

Department, John Wiley & Sons, Inc., 111 River Street, Hoboken, NJ 07030, (201) 748-6011, fax (201) 748-6008, or online at http://www.wiley.com/go/permissions.

Trademarks: Wiley, the Wiley logo, For Dummies, the Dummies Man logo, A Reference for the Rest of Us!, The Dummies Way, Dummies Daily, The Fun and Easy Way, Dummies.com, Making Everything Easier, and related trade dress are trademarks or registered trademarks of John Wiley & Sons, Inc., and/or its affiliates in the United States and other countries, and may not be used without written permission. All other trademarks are the property of their respective owners. John Wiley & Sons, Inc., is not associated with any product or vendor mentioned in this book.

Limit of Liability/Disclaimer of Warranty: The publisher and the author make no representations or warranties with respect to the accuracy or completeness of the contents of this work and specifically disclaim all warranties, including without limitation warranties of fitness for a particular purpose. No warranty may be created or extended by sales or promotional materials. The advice and strategies contained herein may not be suitable for every situation. This work is sold with the understanding that the publisher is not engaged in rendering legal, accounting, or other professional services. If professional assistance is required, the services of a competent professional person should be sought. Neither the publisher nor the author shall be liable for damages arising herefrom. The fact that an organization or Website is referred to in this work as a citation and/or a potential source of further information does not mean that the author or the publisher endorses the information the organization or Website may provide or recommendations it may make. Further, readers should be aware that Internet Websites listed in this work may have changed or disappeared between when this work was written and when it is read.

For general information on our other products and services, please contact our Customer Care Department within the U.S. at 877-762-2974, outside the U.S. at 317-572-3993, or fax 317-572-4002.

For technical support, please visit www.wiley.com/techsupport.

Wiley publishes in a variety of print and electronic formats and by print-on-demand. Some material included with standard print versions of this book may not be included in e-books or in print-on-demand. If this book refers to media such as a CD or DVD that is not included in the version you purchased, you may download this material at http://booksupport.wiley.com. For more information about Wiley products, visit www.wiley.com.

Library of Congress Control Number: 2012940022

ISBN: 978-1-118-16490-7; ISBN 978-1-118-22624-7 (ePDF); ISBN 978-1-118-23946-9 (ePub); ISBN 978-1-118-26070-8 (eMobi)

Manufactured in the United States of America

10 9 8 7 6 5 4 3 2 1



About the Author

John T. Moore, Ed.D, grew up in the foothills of western North Carolina. He attended the University of North Carolina-Asheville where he received his bachelor's degree in chemistry. He earned his master's degree in chemistry from Furman University in Greenville, South Carolina. After a stint in the United States Army, he decided to try his hand at teaching. In 1971, he joined the chemistry faculty of Stephen F. Austin State University (SFASU) in Nacogdoches, Texas, where he still teaches chemistry. In 1985, he started back to school part-time, and in 1991 received his Doctorate in Education from Texas A&M University.

John's area of specialty is chemical education. He has developed several courses for students planning on teaching chemistry at the high school level. In the early 1990s, he shifted his emphasis to training elementary education majors and inservice elementary teachers in hands-on chemical activities. He has received four Eisenhower grants for professional development of elementary teachers and has served as coeditor (along with one of his former students) of the "Chemistry for Kids" feature of *The Journal of Chemical Education*. He is Director of SFASU's Teaching Excellence Center and is a Co-Director of SFA's Science, Technology, Engineering and Mathematics (STEM) Research Center. He is the author of several books on chemistry and is co-author on several more, including *Chemistry Essentials For Dummies, Biochemistry For Dummies*, and *Organic Chemistry II For Dummies*.

Although teaching has always been foremost in his heart, John found time to work part-time for almost five years in the medical laboratory of the local hospital and has been a

consultant for a textbook publisher. He is active in a number of local, state, and national organizations.

John lives in the Piney Woods of East Texas with his wife Robin and their two dogs and two cats. He enjoys brewing his own beer and mead and making custom knife handles and pens from exotic woods. And he loves to cook. His two boys, Jason and Matt, along with his daughter-in-law Sarah and two grandchildren Zane and Sadie remain in the mountains of North Carolina.

Dedication

This book is dedicated to those children, past, present, and future, who will grow to love chemistry, just as I have done. You may never make a living as a chemist, but I hope that you will remember the thrill of your experiments and will pass that enjoyment on to your children. This book is also dedicated to my family: my wife Robin, who encouraged me and put up with my foul moods close to deadlines; my two sons, Jason and Matthew; Jason's wife Sarah; and to the two most wonderful grandchildren in the world, Sadie and Zane. It is also dedicated to Drs. Dexter Squibb and Lloyd Remington of Asheville-Biltmore College who turned me on to the wonders of chemistry and encourages me to continue my education.

Author's Acknowledgments

I would not have had the opportunity to write this book without the encouragement of my agent, Grace Freedson. She took the time to answer my constant e-mails. I owe many thanks to the staff at John Wiley & Sons, Inc., especially executive editor Lindsey Lefevere. Thanks to project editor Chad Sievers for his edits and wit. Thanks also to Rich Langley, my friend and writing partner. And let me offer many thanks to all my students over the past thirty years, especially the ones who became teachers. I've learned from you, and I hope that you've learned from me.

Publisher's Acknowledgments

We're proud of this book; please send us your comments at http://dummies.custhelp.com. For other comments, please contact our Customer Care Department within the U.S. at 877-762-2974, outside the U.S. at 317-572-3993, or fax 317-572-4002.

Some of the people who helped bring this book to market include the following:

Acquisitions, Editorial, and Vertical Websites

Project Editor: Chad R. Sievers

Executive Editor: Lindsay Lefevere

Copy Editor: Chad R. Sievers

Assistant Editor: David Lutton

Editorial Program Coordinator: Joe Niesen

Technical Editors: Michael R. Mueller, PhD, and Patti Smykal

Editorial Manager: Carmen Krikorian

Editorial Assistant: Rachelle Amick

Art Coordinator: Alicia B. South

Cover Photos: © iStockphoto.com/Gunnar Pippel

Cartoons: Rich Tennant (www.the5thwave.com)

Composition Services

Project Coordinator: Patrick Redmond

Layout and Graphics: Carrie A. Cesavice, Sennett Vaughn Johnson, Laura Westhuis

Proofreaders: John Greenough, Lisa Young Stiers

Indexer: Potomac Indexing, LLC

Publishing and Editorial for Consumer Dummies

Kathleen Nebenhaus, Vice President and Executive Publisher

Kristin Ferguson-Wagstaffe, Product Development Director

Ensley Eikenburg, Associate Publisher, Travel

Kelly Regan, Editorial Director, Travel

Publishing for Technology Dummies

Andy Cummings, Vice President and Publisher

Composition Services

Debbie Stailey, Director of Composition Services

Introduction

Congratulations. You jumped the first hurdle in understanding the basics of chemistry by passing Chemistry I. Perhaps you even used my book, *Chemistry For Dummies, Second Edition* (John Wiley & Sons, Inc.). If you did, thank you. If you didn't, I'm glad you've entrusted me with your Chemistry II endeavors. The very fact that you're at least looking at this book indicates that you feel you may need a little help in your Chemistry II class. Chem I (believe it or not) isn't as mathematical as Chem II. In Chem I you had a lot of descriptive material; Chem II is all about solving problems, so get ready.

About This Book

My goal with this book is not to make you into a chemistry major. My goal is simply to give you a basic understanding of some chemical topics that commonly appear in the second half of a university introductory chemistry course or the second year in a high school chemistry course. If you're taking a course, use this book as a reference in conjunction with your notes and textbook.

Simply watching people play the piano, no matter how intently you watch them, doesn't make you a musical expert. You need to practice. And the same is true with chemistry. It's *not* a spectator sport. You probably figured that out in Chem I; you need to practice and work on problems. Chemistry II adds a lot more math problems, which may be challenging for some people. Sharpen up your calculator skills — you'll need them. I show you how to work certain types of problems in this book — homogeneous equilibrium, for example — but use your textbook for practice problems. It's work, yes, but it really can

be fun. This book is for those of you who want some additional help with Chem II topics.

Foolish Assumptions

When I wrote this book, I made a few assumptions about you. Those assumptions include the following:

- You're taking (or retaking) a second-semester college chemistry course or preparing to take a second-semester college chemistry course.
- You're taking (or retaking) a second-year high school chemistry course or preparing to take a second-year high school chemistry course.
- You at least passed the first-year high school chemistry course and are wondering whether you want to take the next class.
- You at least passed the first-semester college chemistry course and are wondering whether you want to take the next class.
- You feel relatively comfortable with arithmetic and know enough algebra to solve for a single unknown in an equation.
- You have a scientific calculator capable of doing exponents and logarithms.

If you're buying this book just for the thrill of finding out about something different — with no plan of ever taking a chemistry course — I applaud you and hope that you enjoy this adventure. Feel free to skip those topics that don't hold your interest; for

you, there will be no tests, only the thrill of increasing your knowledge about something new.

What Not to Read

I know you're a busy person and want to get just what you need from this book. Although I want you to read every single word I've written, I understand you may be on a time crunch. If so, feel free to skip the sidebars, the gray-shaded boxes that appear here and there. These interesting bits of info aren't essential to understanding the stuff you need to know.

I mark some paragraphs with Technical Stuff icons. What I tell you in these paragraphs is more than you need to know, strictly speaking, but it may give you helpful or interesting detail about the topic at hand. If you want just the facts, you can skip these paragraphs.

How This Book Is Organized

I've organized the topics in a logical progression — basically the same way I organize my courses for science and nonscience majors. Following is an overview of each part of the book.

Part I: A Basic Review of Chemistry I

In this part, I give you a basic review of those topics commonly found in a Chem I course that I feel are critical to your